
Town of Swanzey Zoning Board of Adjustment  Draft Minutes 
October 21, 2013 
Page 1 of 3 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Town of Swanzey, New Hampshire 
Swanzey Zoning Board of Adjustment 
Meeting Minutes – October 21, 2013 

 
 

Note:  Draft Minutes are subject to review, correction and approval by the Board. Review and approval of Minutes 
generally takes place at the next regularly scheduled meeting of the Board. 

 
The regular meeting of the Swanzey Zoning Board of Adjustment (ZBA) was called to order at 7:00 p.m. 
by Chairman William Hutwelker. Present were Chairman Hutwelker, Vice Chair Keith Thibault, Jerry 
Walker, Bob Mitchell, Alternates Sarah Tatro and Charles Beauregard, Jr., and Beverly Bernard, 
Recording Secretary. The Recording Secretary called the roll and read the Agenda for the meeting. 
 
Absent:  Charles Beauregard, Sr., and Alternate members Bryan Rudgers, and Jim Vitous 
 
Others Present: Town Planner Sara Carbonneau 
 
Minutes: Motion by Beauregard, Jr.to approve the Minutes for the meeting of September 16, 2013, 
seconded by Mitchell and all in favor, motion passed.   
 
 

1. Public Hearing (Special Exception Application) – Public Hearing opened at 7:05 p.m. 
Rebecca Thayer & Stephen Sweetland request a special exception from Section IV.2.A.m. to permit 
the construction of an accessory building (barn) in excess of 1,000 square feet.  The property is 
situated in the Rural/Agriculture District and is shown at Tax Map 68, Lot 5.    Chair Hutwelker 
seated Tatro for Charles Beauregard, Sr. Also seated for this hearing was Hutwelker, Thibault, 
Walker, and Mitchell. 
 
Carbonneau reviewed the posted notices for the hearing and informed the Chair that the Section in 
question was actually IV.A.2m.   
 
Thayer and Sweetland reviewed the site plan with the Board members and showed photos of the 
proposed location of the barn. Carbonneau said there was no problem with the setbacks.   
 
Hutwelker asked for questions.  Mitchell asked whether there will be electricity for the barn and the 
response was “yes”.  The size of the barn is 1800 square feet.   The barn will be two storied with a 
hay loft. Roofline will be below 25 feet. Hutwelker asked Carbonneau what the issues might be in 
this situation given the property is in the Rural/Agriculture District. She responded that there are 
some non-conforming lots in the Rural/Agricultural District. A larger structure might not be suitable 



Town of Swanzey Zoning Board of Adjustment  Draft Minutes 
October 21, 2013 
Page 2 of 3 
 

on a small lot. In this case, that is not a concern. Carbonneau said the property is the former Pullen 
property and there is a conservation easement on the property.   
Public Hearing closed at 7:13 p.m. 

 
Chair Hutwelker reviewed the ZBA Checklist for a Request for Special Exception 
 

1. Is the exception allowed by the ordinance? 

All responded “yes” 

2. Are the specified conditions present under which the exception may be granted? 

a. Is the proposed use similar to one or more of the uses already authorized in that District and is it an 

appropriate location for such use? – all responded “yes” 

b. Will such approval reduce the value of any property within the district, or otherwise be injurious, 

obnoxious, or offensive to the neighborhood?  All responded “no” 

c. Will there be a nuisance or serious hazard to vehicles or pedestrians? All responded “no” 

d. Will adequate and appropriate facilities be provided for the proper operation of the proposed use? 

All responded “yes” 

Motion by Thibault to approve a special exception from Section IV.A.2m. to Rebecca Thayer & Stephen 
Sweetland to permit the construction of an accessory building (barn) for domesticated animals in excess 
of 1,000 square feet on property situated in the Rural/Agriculture District and shown at Tax Map 68, Lot 
5.   The motion was seconded by Tatro, and all were in favor. Motion passed. 
 
Special Exception Granted. 
 

2. Public Hearing (Variance Application) - Public Hearing opened at 7:16 p.m. 
Rachel Elkins & Robert Metivier request a variance from Section IV.B.3. to permit the 
construction of a shed that does not meet required setbacks.  The property is located at 3 
Houghton Point South and is situated in the Residence & Shoreland Protection (overlay) District.  
The property is shown at Tax Map 18, Lot 174.  Chair Hutwelker seated Chuck Beauregard, Jr. for 
Charles Beauregard, Sr. Also seated were Hutwelker, Thibault, Mitchell, and Walker. 
 
Carbonneau reviewed the posting of public notices. She noted that this property is connected to 
public water and public sewer and is located on Wilson Pond. 
 
Elkins and Metivier reviewed their plans for the shed. The house is on a corner on a less than ¼ 
acre lot.  Elkins said the land slopes down to the pond. She said there is 16 feet between the 
house and fence, which is a path to the back yard. The best location for the shed is between two 
windows next to the house. They passed out photos of the house and yard. No fixed foundation, 
will be on crushed stone.  Thibault asked if neighbors have sheds.  Elkins said the neighbor, 
Bruno Kosheleff at 138 Old Homestead Ave., sent a letter saying he is okay with the shed and its 
location. The letter was included in the meeting materials. The shed will be less than a foot from 
the boundary line.  According to Elkins there is no other level location available, because the 
land slopes toward the pond. The reason for the shed is a need for storage space since there is 
only room in the garage for one car. 
 



Town of Swanzey Zoning Board of Adjustment  Draft Minutes 
October 21, 2013 
Page 3 of 3 
 

Chair Hutwelker asked for questions.  Beauregard, Jr. said waterfront property has issues.  The 
proposed shed doesn’t meet the side setback of 20 feet. Variance being requested is for side 
setback.  It was noted that the proposed shed location meets the setback from everything 
except the side and the neighbor on that side is Kosheleff. Mitchell said the encroachment is a 
problem because it is only inches from the boundary line to neighbor’s lot.  Walker said he is 
having the same issues regarding the shed being so close to the property line.  Hutwelker asked 
about other areas in the yard that might be used, but Elkins said the slope is significant. Walker 
asked about whether the shed might be located where the picnic bench is now as shown in a 
photo. Elkins said that the area isn’t as level as it looks in the photo. Elkins said a boat is stored 
there during the winter. A discussion occurred about a tree on the property and whether or not 
the shed could be placed near the tree. There was enough uncertainly about the lay of the land 
that Hutwelker polled the members about making a site visit.  It was agreed by the members to 
visit the site on Wednesday October 23, 2013 at 4:00 p.m.  
 
Motionby Thibault to continue the meeting without further notice to Wednesday October 23, 
2013 at 4:00 p.m. on site at 3 Houghton Point South subsequently returning to Town Hall, 
second by Beauregard, Jr. All were in favor. Motion passed. 
 

1. Other matters as may be required. 

Motion to adjourn made by Thibault, seconded by Walker and all were in favor. Motion passed. 
Adjournment at 7:42p.m. 
 
 
Respectfully Submitted, 

 
 
Beverly Bernard, Recording Secretary 
 


